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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CASE NO. 8- 2 2 6 7 9
Plaintiff, CIV - GOLD}

V.

HIALEAH HOUSING AUTHORITY,
SEP 2 6 2008

STEVEN M. LARIMO
CLERK US. DlgT e
SD.OF FLA A

AL MIAMI

Defendant.

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRI

The United States, by and through the undersigned United States Attorney, files this

Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial and states:

1. This action is brought by the United States on behalf of Miguel Rodriguez, his wife,
Lazara Rodriguez, and their children, Dianela Rodriguez and Emmanuel Rodriguez, to
enforce the provisions of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing
Act), as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601, et
seq.

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1345, and 42
U.S.C. § 3612(0). Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391(b) and 42 U.S.C. § 3612(0), as defendants are located in this judicial district and the
events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in this judicial district.

3. Defendant Hialeah Housing Authority (“HHA™) is a HUD-funded housing provider that

manages several public housing developments throughout Hialeah, Florida. HHA
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maintains its primary place of business at 75 East 6™ Street, Hialeah, Florida.

4. HHA is responsible for the general overall management and operation of the multi-family
apartment complex located at 6329 W. 24 Street, Hialeah, Florida (“subject property”).

5. The units at the subject property are “dwellings” within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §
3602(b).

6. Miguel Rodriguez is a person with a disability as defined within the meaning of the Fair
Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3602(h). Mr. Rodriguez has physical impairments that
substantially limit his ability to climb stairs. He receives Social Security disability
benefits.

7. The Rodriguez family lived in apartment 202, a second floor unit at the subject property,
from 1995 until August 2005, when they were forced to move out.

8. On or about October 15, 1997, Miguel Rodriguez was hired part-time by HHA as night
manager for the subject property. At that time, Mr. Rodriguez held a full-time position at
a lumber supply yard.

9. In 2001, Miguel Rodriguez suffered a work-related fall at his full-time place of
employment. Due to his physical injuries, his wife, Lazara Rodriguez, assumed his duties
and responsibilities as night manager, with HHA’s knowledge.

10.  On or about December 2004, disputes arose at the subject property among three resident
families - one between the Rodriguez family and the Amparo family, and another
between the Amparo and the Perez family.

11.  On or about January 3, 2005, HHA served the Rodriguez family with a Notice of Lease

Termination due to their conflict with the Amparo family. On information and belief,
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

HHA also served the other two families with termination notices.

On or about January 20, 2005, Miguel and Lazara Rodriguez attended an informal HHA
internal grievance hearing to dispute the lease termination. During the hearing, HHA
offered to transfer the Rodriguez family to a vacant unit at Hoffman Gardens, another
public housing development operated by the defendant, in lieu of eviction.

At this hearing, Mr. and Mrs. Rodriguez advised HHA that Mr. Rodriguez had difficulty
climbing stairs and needed a unit with a bathroom that was accessible without climbing
stairs. They agreed to accept the transfer because HHA represented that the unit at
Hoffman Gardens had a half-bath on the first floor.

On January 21, 2005, Lazara Rodriguez sent a letter to HHA rejecting the transfer to
Hoffman Gardens because she had learned that there was no half-bath on the first floor of
the unit, and Mr. Rodriguez would need to climb stairs to use the bathroom. She stated
that she would provide medical documentation upon request.

On January 24, 2005, HHA issued a decision upholding the termination of the
Rodriguez’s lease.

On January 31, 2005, an attorney for the Rodriguez family sent a letter to HHA
requesting a formal hearing. Neither the Rodriguez family nor their attorney received
notice of the formal hearing, which, they were told, was held in their absence on March 9,
2005.

On March 11, 2005, HHA sent the Rodriguez family a letter upholding the decision to
terminate their lease for failure to attend the formal hearing.

On May 4, 2005, HHA filed a complaint for eviction against the Rodriguez family in the
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

County Court for Miami-Dade County, Florida.

On May 17, 2005, the Rodriguez family filed an answer and motion to dismiss the
complaint, alleging that HHA had failed to provide a reasonable accommodation for Mr.
Rodriguez’s disability, that he was disabled and had difficulty climbing stairs to the
second floor bathroom due to hip and back problems and that he had informed HHA of
his reasonable accommodation request on January 21, 2005.

On June 30, 2005, Miguel and Lazara Rodriguez participated in court-ordered mediation
with HHA. During the mediation, Mr. and Mrs. Rodriguez rejected HHA’s offer to
transfer them to a unit at Hoffman Gardens because the available unit did not have a
bathroom that was accessible without climbing stairs. HHA offered to place the
Rodriguez family on a “waiting list” for an accessible unit, if adequate medical
documentation was submitted, but stated that, in the meantime, they would have to vacate
their present unit.

Because of HHA’s refusal to provide him a unit with access to a bathroom that did not
require him to climb stairs, Mr. Rodriguez signed a stipulation and order for dismissal,
dismissing the eviction action and requiring his family to vacate the subject property by
August 31, 2005.

On or about June 28, 2006, Miguel Rodriguez filed a complaint with the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) alleging that HHA denied his
request for a reasonable accommodation when it refused to give him a unit that was
suitable for his disability.

On or about July 23, 2008, Miguel Rodriguez filed an amended complaint with HUD,
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

adding his wife, Lazara Rodriguez, and their children as aggrieved persons.
Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 3610(a) and (b), the Secretary of HUD conducted and
completed an investigation of the complaint, attempted conciliation without success, and
prepared a final investigative report. Based upon the information gathered in the
investigation, the Secretary, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g)(1), determined that
reasonable cause existed to believe that illegal discriminatory housing practices had
occurred because of disability.
On or about August 6, 2008, the Secretary issued a Determination of Reasonable Cause
and Charge of Discrimination pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g)(2)(A), charging that
defendant HHA had engaged in discriminatory_practices, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §
3604(f)(3)(B) of the Fair Housing Act, as amended.
On or about August 13, 2008, defendant HHA elected to have the claims asserted in
HUD’s Charge of Discrimination decided in a civil action, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §
3612(a).
On or about August 20, 2008, the Administrative Law Judge issued a Notice of Election
of Judicial Determination and terminated the administrative proceedings on the
complaints filed by the Rodriguez family.
Following this Notice of Election, the Secretary of HUD authorized the Attorney General
to commence a civil action, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(0).
Defendant HHA, through the above-referenced actions, has:

a. Discriminated in the rental, or otherwise made unavailable or denied, a

dwelling to Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel Rodriguez because of
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30.

31.

32.

Miguel Rodriguez’s disability, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(1);

b. Discriminated against Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel Rodriguez
in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental of a dwelling, or in the
provision of services or facilities in connection with such dwelling,
because of Miguel Rodriguez’s disability, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §
3604(f)(2); and

c. Refused to make reasonable accommodations in rules, policies, practices,
or services when such accommodations may have been necessary to afford
Miguel Rodriguez equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling, in
violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(H)(3)(B).

Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel Rodriguez are “aggrieved persons” within the

meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 3602(i).

As a result of HHAs discriminatory conduct, Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel

Rodriguez have suffered and continue to suffer damages.

The discriminatory actions of HHA were intentional, willful, and taken in disregard of the

federally-protected rights of Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel Rodriguez.

WHEREFORE, the United States of America prays for relief as follows:

A. A declaration that the discriminatory conduct of HHA as set forth above violates
the Fair Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601, et seq.;

B. An injunction against HHA, its agents, employees, successors, and all other
persons in active concert or participation with any of them from discriminating

because of disability in violation of the Fair Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
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§§ 3601, et seq.; and
C. Awards of monetary damages to Miguel, Lazara, Dianela and Emmanuel
Rodriguez, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 3612(0)(3) and 3613(c)(1).
The United States further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may
require.
JURY DEMAND
Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the United States of
America demands a jury trial on all issues that are triable to a jury.

DATED: September _ A& , 2008

Respectfully submitted,

" Assistant U.S. Alttorney
99 N.E. 4% Street, 3™ Floor
Miami, Florida 33132-2111
Fla. Bar No. 644791
Telephone: (305) 961-9327
Fax: (305) 530-7139

OF COUNSEL.

Elizabeth A. Singer

U.S. Department of Justice

Civil Rights Division

Housing and Civil Enforcement Section
950 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20530

Tel. (202) 514-6164

Fax. (202) 514-1116
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